NATIONS CERD

Di str.

International Convention on GENERAL

the Elimination

CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1201
of all Forms of 18 April 1997
Racial Discrimination

ENGLI SH
Oiginal: FRENCH

COWM TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fiftieth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1201st MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Thursday, 13 March 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai rman: M. BANTON

CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COWVMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Ninth and tenth periodic reports of Belgium (continued)

Review of inplenentation of the Convention in States parties with
| ong- overdue reports (continued)

- Camer oon

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97- 15887 (E)



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1201
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.05 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 5) (continued)

Ninth and tenth periodic reports of Bel gium (CERD/ C/ 260/ Add. 2;
HRI / CORE/ 1/ Add. 1/ Rev. 1) (conti nued)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, the nenbers of the del egati on of
Bel gium resuned their places at the Committee table.

2. M. van den BULCKE (Bel giun) said there was no reason to fear that the
i mm gration policy of the Belgian Governnent would end up crimnalizing the
immgrant. A serious assessnent of that policy should take into account the
gl obal approach to the question of inmgration, including provisions
protecting the rights of imrgrants under detention while awaiting
repatriation to their country of origin.

3. Wth regard to the struggle against illegal immgration, the Governnent
was primarily targeting people who exploited illegal inmmgrants, for exanple
by curbing the use of illegal |abourers and traffic in persons. It made an

effort to organize repatriation humanely of inmm grants who had not obtained a
residence permit in Belgium for instance by encouraging their voluntary
departure.

4, Legal protection was planned for imrigrants placed in detention while
awai ting repatriation. |f appropriate, the detention, which could be as |ong
as two nonths, could be prolonged, in conformty with the |aw and under the
supervi sion of the conpetent courts.

5. In connection with the fight against marriages of convenience, the
courts could be asked to perform checks. The Governnent was in the process of
preparing suppl enmentary provisions in order to clarify the rights and
obligations of persons with regard to marriage with inmmgrants, observing the
greatest respect for the fundanental right to marry.

6. M. SAN T ANGELO (Belgium, replying to questions raised by nmenbers of
the Committee on the application of the anti-racist |laws, said that Parlianent
had doubt| ess been sonewhat hasty in replacing the concept of national origin
with that of nationality for reasons of |ogistical consistency, but that the
anmendnent had had no practical effect. 1In any event, the Centre for Equa
Opportunity and Action to Conbat Raci smwoul d propose reverting to the concept
of national origin, in conformty with the Convention

7. Turning to offences against the |egislation on the press, he said that
the courts could declare thensel ves i nconpetent, but not the investigating
bodi es or the public prosecutor. Belgian |egislation punished racist acts
only if the racist intent had been sufficiently proved. The purpose of the
1994 reform had been to facilitate the establishnent of proof of racist
intent. By virtue of a decision of the Court of Cassation, however, the

exi stence of the offence and the prosecution of its author did not depend on



CERD/ C/ SR. 1201
page 3

an actual act having been conmtted. |In addition, the 1995 Act punished the
perpetrators of genocide and equated revisionismwi th incitement to racia
hatred and violence and to anti-Semitism

8. He assured the Conmittee that Belgiumhad no particular difficulty in
preparing statistics on conbatting racismand should be able to submt themin
its next periodic report, broken down article by article, as requested.

9. Wth regard to the ban on racist organizations, the Constitution did not
permt associations to be banned. However, the conviction of menmbers of smal
organi zations under article 3 of the 1981 Act generally resulted in those
organi zations dissolving thensel ves, which conpensated for the fact that they
coul d not be banned. The probl em remai ned, however, vis-a-vis |arge

organi zations and political parties. Mich was expected of the ongoing reform
of justice, |egal proceedings and provisions on caring for and conpensating
the victinms of racist acts.

10. The federal State had initiated the procedure of seeking Parliament's
approval of Belgium s accession to article 14 of the Convention. At the sane
time, it was looking into the practices of States that had acceded to the
Convention, particularly with regard to the establishnent within their |ega
system of a body conpetent to consider petitions fromindividuals conplaining
of violations of the rights enunciated in the Convention. Belgi um nonethel ess
feared the | egal consequences of a proliferation of protocols ained at giving
all the human rights conventions nechanisns for the subm ssion of conplaints
fromindividuals. It was particularly worried about the risks of overlap and
about the still-enbryonic nature of the case |law of the treaty bodies.

11. M. VILLAN (Belgiunm said that the integration of inmmgrants into the
Wal | oon and Fl em sh conmmunities had taken different forms because of various
soci o-historic factors. Having begun nuch earlier and been initially European
inorigin, imrgration to Wallonia had been facilitated by the existence of
conmon pl aces of work and living, which had encouraged solidarity between
immgrants and | ocals, and by the fact that the first wave of imrgrants had
bel onged to a comon European cultural matrix.

12. The popul ation that cane from nenber States of the European Union was
larger in Wallonia than in Flanders. |In the Brussels region, on the other
hand, the community of Maghreb and Turkish origin was especially |arge but did
not work or live in the sanme places as Brussels natives. Some 30 per cent of
the people in Wallonia were of foreign origin, whereas in Flanders the figure
was 12 to 13 per cent. Simlarly, the “new Bel gi ans”, nanely, persons born on
Bel gian territory of foreign parents, who were therefore able to acquire
Bel gi an nationality, were to be found in all the communities, although they
were particularly numerous in Wallonia and the Brussels region

13. In Wallonia, the integration of foreigners had been organized jointly by
Bel gi an and i nm grant associations and the |ocal authorities. The concept of

i ntegration had been defined and accepted at the federal State |evel and was
therefore the result of joint consideration by the linguistic communities. In
t he French-speaki ng area, the enphasis was on | earning French as a second

| anguage, combatting school drop-out, citizenship, conmbatting racism

medi ati on and soci al and professional integration. The “success schools” and



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1201
page 4

priority education zones were al so stressed. Intercultural nediators had been
designated to facilitate the scholastic integration of young inmgrants.
Simlarly, health nediators were working to ensure that cultural factors were
taken into account in preparing nmedical diagnoses.

14. Ms. DEGROOTE (Belgiunm) turned to the |egal aspects of inplenentation of
the Decl aration on Non-Discrimnation in Elementary Education in the Flem sh
comunity, which was reflected in a nulti-pronged action. The Mnister of
Educati on had adopted an approach based on voluntary participation rather than
a legalistic approach, as the Constitution provided for freedom of choice as
to education. Furthernore, 70 per cent of the education sector in Flanders
was accounted for by Catholic institutions independent of the State. A

| egal i stic approach would risk setting the Catholic schools against students
from i mm grant backgrounds, particularly Islanm c backgrounds. All the

comuni ties had reached voluntary agreenents concerning access to schools.
Parents who were not happy with the arrangenents could turn to extra | ega

medi ation or to a judge. However, the relevant case | aw was not consistent,
and freedom of education renained a nmajor el enent.

15. The expression “white schools” referred to schools where there were no
or alnmost no inmm grant students, whereas “black school s” neant the contrary,
whi ch was expl ained in paragraph 98 of the report.

16. M. van den BULCKE (Bel giunm said that information which could not be
provided either in witing or orally would be included in the next periodic
report of Belgium Follow ng the recent tragedies there, public opinion and
the authorities were reflecting on what steps to take to institute justice
with a human face. The Committee's observations would therefore be all the
nmore val uabl e to Bel gi um

17. M . FERRERO COSTA asked whet her he understood correctly that children
born in Belgiumto alien parents automatically acquired the possibility of

obt ai ni ng Bel gi an nationality. |If that was only a possibility, it would nean
that Bel gian legislation did not respect the principle of jus soli. If so, he

wi shed to have expl anations on the reasons for the restriction. The Belgian
Governnment should also subnmit its reports with greater regularity than it had
done in the past.

18. M. GARVALOV said that the case of Bel gium denonstrated that | anguage
was not necessarily the only criterion the Commttee should use in deciding on
ethnic differences, but nor should it ignore it, even if |anguages and
religions were less rigorous criteria than ethnic origins. |In that regard, he
recall ed that the General Assenbly in 1992 had adopted a Declaration on the

Ri ghts of Persons Belonging to National or Ethnic, Religious or Linguistic
Mnorities, affirming the validity of those criteria.

19. M. SHAHI asked precisely to what extent each of the paragraphs of
article 4 of the Convention was being inplenmented and what were the activities
of the Centre for Equal Opportunity and Action to Combat Raci sm

20. M. van BOVEN repeated the question he had raised on 12 March as to why
the Mnistry of Foreign Affairs had been unable to provide the Bel gi an League
of Human Rights with a copy of the report of Belgium as requested by the




CERD/ C/ SR. 1201
page 5

League. He presuned there had been a m sunderstanding. There was a politica
party in Belgium the Vlaans Bl ok, which had many nenbers, particularly in

Fl anders, and which in nmany ways coul d be considered as racist. He understood
that there were no plans to declare it illegal, and therefore asked whet her
crimnal proceedings had been initiated against its nenbers who were, by
maki ng raci st remarks, infringing the 1991 Act, anmended in 1994. He also
asked how respected the party was in political life, and whether it had any

el ected officials at the |ocal and federal |evels.

21. M. de GOUTTES said that the Bel gi an del egati on had nade an i nportant
observation on the distinction between the Convention on the Rights of the
Child and the International Convention on the Elimnation of Al Fornms of
Racial Discrimnation in terms of their direct applicability. Did that mean
that the provisions of the latter were not directly applicable? 1t did,
however, seem that Bel gium was one of the “nonist” States (for which ratified
treaties had prinmacy over domestic |law as well as direct effect), as opposed
to “dualist” States (in which a national |aw was needed in order for treaties
to be applied donestically).

22. M. LECHUGA HEVIA, referring to paragraph 23 of the Spanish version of
the report, said he did not understand what was nmeant by “paises anal ogos”
(simlar countries) and asked whether the restriction under article 18 bis did
not risk provoking racist acts.

23. M. ABOUL- NASR sai d he hoped that the Bel gi an del egation would reply to
hi s question about genocide. He was surprised that M. van Boven had asked
why Bel gium s report had not been transmitted to an NGO. Returning to
article 9, he said that the Convention in no way obliged States parties to
transmt their report to anyone other than the Secretary-General

24. M. van BOVEN said that he was nerely follow ng the reconmendati ons
contained in several resolutions of the General Assenbly.

25. The CHAI RMAN, speaking in his capacity as a nmenber of the Committee,
sai d he hoped Bel gi um woul d subsequently provide the Committee with details on
the text of the Act penalizing the denial of the Hol ocaust.

26. M. van den BULCKE (Belgiun) said that on 12 March he had asked the

M nistry of Foreign Affairs why the Bel gi an League for Human Ri ghts, had not
had access to the report, but he had not received a reply, as the conpetent
official was ill. The delegation had duly noted the question, which affected
the very credibility of the country's institutions.

27. M. SAN T ANCELO (Belgium replied to other questions raised by nmenbers
of the Committee. |In connection with the acquisition of nationality, he said
that, traditionally, Belgiumwas a country of jus sanguinis. Since 1984,
however, there had been a trend towards jus solis. Currently, when both
parents of a child born in Belgiumhad |lived there for at |east 10 years, they
could file a declaration of Belgian nationality on behalf of their child
before he or she reached the age of 12. |If, on the other hand, one of the
foreign parents was born in Belgium the child automatically acquired Bel gi an
nationality at birth.




CERD/ C/ SR. 1201
page 6

28. The 1981 Act, as anended in 1994, was an application of article 4 of the
Convention. The activities of the Centre for Equal Opportunity and Action to

Conmbat Raci smwere highly diverse and could be described in greater detail in

t he next report.

29. A prelimnary attenpt to take |l egal action had been nade agai nst the

VI aans Bl ok but had come up agai nst the problem of offences against the

| egislation on the press. Another action had been filed in reaction to the
publication of a brochure, but other evidence was being gathered in an attenpt
to avoid the sanme hurdle. Article 3 of the Convention would certainly be

i nvoked. No burgonaster, mayor or alderman was a nenber of the Vlaans Bl ok
but several rmunicipal councillors belonged to that party in Flanders, where
there were many voters. Belgiumdid, however, abide by the denocratic rules,
and Vl aans Bl ok had the sane constitutional rights as other parties.

30. Article 18 bis had never been applied to paragraph 23. The Spanish
transl ati on was undoubtedly incorrect: the phrase referred to “foreigners

ot her than European Community and assinilated foreigners”. The term
“assim | ated” was one of Community |aw, by which a non-European foreigner who
marri ed a European enjoyed the status of European through assimlation

31. On the question of the direct applicability of the Convention, Bel gium
did nake a distinction between the provisions, sone of which were directly
applicable, or in other words could be invoked directly before the courts. As
to | anguages, the Constitution clearly defined the right to use each | anguage
freely. That was a very inportant principle. There were other specific
regul ati ons concerning the | anguages used for conmunication with the
authorities. The Vlaans Bl ok was not represented at any |evel of the
Executive branch.

32. M. DIACONU (Country Rapporteur) wel coned the very interesting dial ogue
that had taken place with Bel gium and drew several general conclusions from
it. Geater consistency and enhanced coordi nati on should be secured within
the legislative systemif the new anti-discrimnation | aws were to be
effectively inplemented and not cone up against the hurdle of offences against
the legislation on the press. Geater effort was needed in the application of
anti-racist legislation to avoid a situation of de facto inpunity. The
authorities, including parlianmentarians, should also be nmobre concerned with
shapi ng public opinion so as to prevent foreigners from being considered as
enemi es. The Committee, and the Bel gian authorities, should encourage the
activities of the Centre for Equal Opportunity and Action to Conmbat Raci sm
whi ch had an extremely inportant role to play in ensuring to the extent
possi bl e that the Convention was inplenmented uniformy throughout the
territory.

33. The CHAI RMAN t hanked the Bel gi an del egation for the very useful exchange
of views, which should contribute to an enhanced i npl ementati on of the
Convention. The Commttee had thereby concluded its consideration of the
ninth and tenth periodic reports of Bel gi um

34. The del egation of Bel gium wi t hdr ew.




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1201
page 7

Revi ew of inplenentation of the Convention in States parties with | ong-overdue
reports

Caner oon

35. At the invitation of the Chairman, the nenbers of the del egati on of
Caneroon took places at the Conmittee table.

36. The CHAIRMAN recalled that, in conformity with the decisions taken at
its forty-ninth session, the Conmttee had planned to review the status of

i npl enentati on of the Convention in several States parties whose reports were
| ong-overdue. Such a State was Caneroon, which had been invited to

participate in the exchange. Insofar as it was relatively unusual for States
parties to respond to such an invitation, he welconed the presence of the
del egation of Cameroon. In undertaking its assessment, the Commttee would

endeavour not to raise questions that were not relevant to the Convention, as
it had sonetines been tenpted to do in the past.

37. M. YOUMSI (Cameroon) thanked the Committee for its warm wel cone and
regretted the delay in submitting his country's periodic reports. His

del egation had attenpted to fill in the gaps observed by the Conmittee in the
ei ghth and ninth periodic reports (CERD/ C/ 171/ Add. 1) .

38. Regarding the first part of the report (“Ceneral information”), the
menbers of the Comm ttee had asked for additional information on severa
points. Referring first of all to the conposition of the popul ation, he said
that, according to the nost recent general census, which dated from 1986,
Camer oon had 12,903, 000 i nhabitants, 51 per cent of whom were wonmen and

49 per cent nen, 40 per cent of whom were under age 15, 50 per cent between
ages 16 and 64 and 10 per cent over 65. The denographic growh rate was

2.6 per cent. One third of the population lived in urban centres. Life
expectancy was 59 years for wonen and 54.5 years for nen. The literacy rate,
currently in decline, was 68 per cent, one of the highest rates of that
African subregion.

39. The popul ati on was conposed primarily of Bantus in the south, the
coastal area, the centre, the south-west and the south-east; of Sudanese and
Peul s in the provinces of Adamaoua, the north and the far north; and of Choa
Arabs in the Lake Chad vall ey.

40. Regardi ng voting nodalities, Act No. 92/002 of 14 August 1992 stated
that munici pal councillors were elected on a single ballot by a majority
proportional vote. Each list should be representative of the different socia
segnents of the district. The mayor was el ected by the nunicipal council
Those provisions had becone applicable as of the first pluralistic municipa
el ecti ons of 1996.

41. Act No. 91/20 of 16 December 1991 stipulated that the el ection of
deputies to the National Assenbly was to be carried out by voting for severa
menbers froma list, without either a preferential vote or vote-splitting
Each political party that was authorized by the | aw submtted a |ist

conpri sing as many candi dates chosen fromanmong its menbers as there were
seats to be filled. |In that case as well, each list had to represent all the



CERD/ C/ SR. 1201
page 8

district's social segments. The provisions had been applied during the first
mul ti-party legislative elections of 1992. Four political parties were now
represented in Parlianent.

42. The multi-party system had progressed. The opposition parties had taken
part in the three elections held since the institution of the nmulti-party
systemin 1990. They had presented 8 candidates in the 1992 presidentia

el ections, and in the sane year, 36 parties had presented thenselves at the

| egislative elections. Thirty-eight parties had participated in the 1996
muni ci pal el ections and 15 of them were represented on the municipal councils.
In the cities, many nmayors' offices were being run by the opposition

43. Wth regard to neasures taken to encourage equality between the sexes,
Camer ooni an wonen had access to all jobs, including in the public sector
where they accounted for 32.6 per cent of staff; in the National Assenbly,
where there were 22 wonen, or 12 per cent of deputies; on the Suprenme Court,
where one woman had reached the rank of counsell or and anot her was President
of the Appeals Court; and in the Governnent, of which 2 general secretaries
wer e woren.

44. Worren accounted for 52.8 per cent of workers in the tertiary sector

The Chief Executive Oficer of the National Investnment Corporation (SNI),
which controlled all State-owned enterprises, was a wonan. Sone 43.8 per cent
of enployees in the nedico-social sector were wonen. In all sectors of
activity, there was equal renuneration between men and wonen, and nost of the
political parties encouraged the advancenent of wonen to el ectoral functions,
both | egi sl ative and nuni ci pal .

45, In connection with the inplenentation of article 2 of the Convention

the preanble to the Constitution of 18 January 1996 provided that the State
secured the protection of mnorities and preserved the rights of indigenous
popul ati ons.

46. Schools were built in the | east devel oped areas of the country and
health centres were established. As part of international cooperation
studies were carried out in order to understand the life style of certain
groups and, through the appropriate assistance, to encourage their endogenous
devel opnent. To that end, there was a support project for the

sel f -advancenent of the Pygm es.

47. On articles 4 and 6 of the Convention, article 45 of the Constitution
stated that ratified international treaties or accords took precedence over
nati onal legislation. The provisions of the Convention could therefore be

i nvoked before the adnministrative authorities and the courts. |If those

provi sions called for charges to be brought, it was vital that the appropriate
penal ty shoul d be incorporated into donestic crimnminal |aw

48. As at 1 June 1995, there had been 45,813 refugees from Chad, Rwanda,
Equat ori al Guinea, Burundi, Zaire, the Sudan and Liberia. They were

i ncreasi ngly nunerous, as Caneroon was a |land of asylumand a nmelting pot.
The refugees were taken care of by the Ofice of the H gh Comn ssioner for
Ref ugees (UNHCR), which had an office in Yaoundé, and by the Governnent.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1201
page 9

Most of them were part of the formal or informal economi c sector. However,
they would have to return to their countries once the repression there had
ended, except for those who in the neantine had acquired Cameroonian
nationality.

49. Wth regard to house searches, the Crimnal Investigation Code, part of
the French | egacy, and the rules of crimnal procedure which were part of
common | aw applied. Those instrunents set forth the conditions for house
searches, including authorization froma judge or, in cases of flagrante
delicto, the consent of the master of the house.

50. Since the repeal of the emergency laws in 1990, and the denocratization
that had acconpanied the nmulti-party system Caneroon no |onger had any rea
opponents of the regime or persons inprisoned without having been indicted or
tried for endangering public order or another offence.

51. In connection with restrictions on freedom of expression and the press
based on unity, national security, public order and decency and norals,

Act No. 90/52 of 19 Decenber 1990 on freedom of communication stipul ated that
the decision to seize an indicted press organ was taken by the conpetent

adm nistrative authority. The Mnister of Territorial Adm nistration could

al so ban a press organ. An appeal against a decision to seize or ban could be
| odged with the conpetent judge. Censorship had been abolished by

Act No. 96/ 04 of 4 January 1996.

52. A National Human Ri ghts and Freedons Conmittee had been established
in 1990. Anpbng other activities, it publicized human rights instrunents and
col l ected and dissenmnated international texts on human rights and freedons.

53. M. de GOUTTES (Country Rapporteur) thanked the del egati on of Cameroon
for having cone specially from Yaoundé, which denonstrated Caneroon's
willingness to resune contact with the Committee after an interruption of nore
than six years. |In August 1990, at the thirty-eighth session of the
Conmittee, M. Ahmadu had stated that the Canerooni an Governnent was one of
the fewin Africa to subnmit its periodic reports, pay its dues and send a

del egation during consideration of its reports by the Cormittee. Since 1990,
t he donestic situation of Canmeroon had changed greatly: follow ng the

i ntroduction of the nulti-party systemin |ate June 1990, the March 1992

| egi slative elections had given a relative majority to the party of

Presi dent Biya, the Rassenbl enent dénocratique du peupl e camerounais

(Caner ooni an Peopl e's Denocratic Muwvenent). The Cctober 1992 presidentia

el ections, held under an absolute-ngjority, single-ballot system had led to
the President's re-election. A constitutional amendment had been adopted by
the Assenbly in Decenber 1995 and had pernmitted the creation of a Senate, a
Constitutional Court and decentralization. He wondered whether that reform
had actually been realized in full.

54. The January 1996 rnuni ci pal el ections had brought victory to the Socia
Denmocratic Front (SDF) and the National Union for Denbcracy and Progress
(UNDP)in nost of the large cities. Legislative and then presidentia

el ections were to take place in March, April and Cctober 1997. However, the
opposi tion was conpl ai ni ng about obstacles to the registration of voters in



CERD/ C/ SR. 1201
page 10

areas that did not support the CGovernnment. The opposition believed that the
transparency of the upcom ng el ections was uncertain as the Governnent had
stood in the way of plans to train national elections observers.

55. In the absence of a witten report from Canmeroon, he had drawn on the
foll owi ng sources of information: various United Nations bodies; the second
periodic report subnmitted by Canmeroon to the Human Rights Commttee, in 1993
(CCPR/ C/ 63/ Add. 1); the March 1994 report of the Human Rights Conmittee to the
General Assenbly (A/49/40); the report of Amesty International; and the 1996
human rights report of the United States Departnment of State. In the |ight of
that information, he rem nded the Canmerooni an authorities of the need to
conply with their obligations under the Convention by providing informtion in
their next periodic report, conbining the tenth, eleventh and twelfth overdue
reports, on the country's socio-political situation and on the inplenmentation
of articles 2-7 of the Convention. |In order to prepare its report, the
Government should, if it thought it necessary, request the assistance of the
Centre for Human Rights

56. The next report should provide fuller information on the composition of
the popul ation. The information just provided by M. Younsi was inadequate.
In the next report, statistics should describe the various ethnic groups,

whi ch the del egati on had nunbered at 200 in 1990. The Committee would al so
like to be informed of the breakdown of refugees by nationality.

57. Regardi ng the inplenentation of article 2 of the Convention, the

Gover nment shoul d provide the Conmittee with additional information on the
so-called positive neasures it had taken to ensure the adequate devel oprment
and protection of certain mnority groups in |ess devel oped areas of the
country, particularly the Pygm es and Bantus. Were they receiving Governnent
assi stance? Wat were the living conditions of the Pgymes in the

resettl ement areas?

58. According to the report of the United States Department of State, the
Beti ethnic group, to which President Biya bel onged, held all the key posts in
the Governnent, the security forces and the arnmy. The Committee would like
further information on that situation, which appeared to be based on the

domi nation of one ethnic group by another

59. The Conmittee wished to be better informed on the functioning of the
Nati onal Human Ri ghts and Freedonms Conmittee and ot her organizations involved
in conbating racial and ethnic discrinmnation. Did that body nmake its work
public? What were its plans? In February 1996, the first African regiona
conference of national institutions for the protection of human rights had
been held at Yaoundé. Further information on that conference and on
Caneroon's contribution would be wel cone.

60. Concerning articles 4 and 6 of the Convention, the Conmttee wondered
whet her the reforms of the Penal Code and the Code of Crimnal Procedure
mentioned in the previous report allowed for all cases of racial or ethnic
discrimnation to be tried and punished. 1In connection with the judicia
authorities, the United States State Departnment report nentioned the

mal functioning of justice in Caneroon but also the phenomena of corruption and
pressure placed on judges by the Executive branch. The Committee would like



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1201
page 11

information on that point. WAs it true that there were still “private
prisons” in the north of the country placed under the authority of the
traditional chiefs, the Lam bés, who were not subject to the authority of the
penitentiary systenf

61. In relation to article 5 of the Convention, as in 1990, the Comm ttee
woul d I'ike nore information on the economi c, social and cultural rights
enjoyed by mnority and ethnic groups in Canmeroon, particularly in the fields
of health, education, culture and religion. Wre those groups represented in
the el ected bodies? What were the illiteracy and school enrol nent rates? How
were the different ethnic mnorities integrated into public life, the arnmny,
the police, the nmagistrature and the adm nistration? Ws it true, as
indicated in the 1996 report of Amesty International, that there had been
serious intercomunity clashes in the Nord-Quest province?

62. Furthernmore, as the Committee had done in 1990, he asked the Governnent
to clarify the effects of the coexistence in Canmeroon of two different |ega
syst ens.

63. In reference to article 7, the Governnent should provide information on
its efforts to pronote public awareness of the provisions of the Convention
and the Conmittee's conclusions and to ensure training in human rights and
inter-ethnic tolerance for | aw enforcenent officers, particularly menbers of
the security forces. According to Amesty International and the United States
Department of State, they had comritted acts of violence and abuses agai nst
civilian popul ations.

64. M . FERRERO COSTA, agreeing with M. de Gouttes, suggested that the
Governnment should ask the Centre of Human Rights for assistance in preparing
its report. He asked how a country with 200 different ethnic groups could be
exenpt fromall problenms of racial discrimnation, as the Caneroon
representative had stated in 1990. Should such probl enms exist, what steps was
the Government taking to elimnate racial discrimnation? It seemed that a
reform of |egislation was needed so as to apply article 4 in full. He w shed
to know the situation of |anguages other than French and English. He would
also like to know nore about the functioning and powers of the Nationa

Human Ri ghts and Freedons Committee.

65. He requested clarification on the planning systemnentioned in

par agraph 309 of the Conmittee's report to the CGeneral Assenbly (A/45/18),
whi ch had been inplenmented to establish a balance between the various ethnic
groups and provinces in the country.

66. Ms. SADIQ ALI, supported by M. Ahmadu, asked how many Rwandan refugees
there were in Canmeroon and how many of those who had been suspected of
participating in the genocide had been repatriated to Rvanda at the request of
t he Rwandan Gover nment .

67. M. AHMADU conmended Caneroon for having, since its previous report
(CERD/ C/ 171/ Add. 1), held free and fair elections, taken a nunber of steps to

i ntegrate ethnic groups, and adopted many | egislative provisions in conformty
with the Convention. He asked the delegation if it was true that the mayors
el ected in the nost recent rmunicipal elections had not been authorized to take



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1201
page 12

up their duties. He requested nore information on the conposition of the
foreign population living in Cameroon and on conflicts between French-Ianguage
and English-1anguage legislation. |If possible, he would also |like to know the
breakdown of the population in terns of religion and what the number of
animsts was. Did one particular ethnic group predom nate in the

adm nistration? Wre the populations of the north fully integrated into the
armed forces and the public sector?

68. M. SHERI FIS said he wished to thank the del egati on personally for
havi ng cone specially to participate in the Conmittee's current meeting. He
stressed the inportance of the question of the ethnic conposition of Cameroon,
especially since it was the only country bel onging both to the French-speaking
group of countries and to the Conmonwealth. He al so conmended Caneroon for
having created a national human rights commttee, as that decision was in
conformty with a recomrendati on adopted unani mously by the Comittee.

69. The CHAI RMAN drew the attention of the delegation to the Conmittee's
gui del i nes on popul ation statistics, taking account of the fact that some
African countries thought it preferable not to collect census data on the
ethnic origin of the population. Furthernore, nenbers of the comunity were
aware that, in the nulti-ethnic societies of Africa, ethnic questions could
lead to political problens, and care should be taken not to consider themin
their ethnic dinmension alone. He invited the delegation to provide detailed
replies inits next report and at the present tine to provide any further
details it deened necessary, if it so w shed.

70. M. YOUMSI (Cameroon) thanked the rapporteur for his pertinent analysis
of the situation in Canmeroon and thanked the other nmenbers of the Conmittee
for their interest. Mst of the questions would be answered to in detail in
Canmeroon's report, but he wished inmediately to give additional information on
the mal functioning of justice and on ethnic problems. The difficulties
encountered in the area of justice were due first of all to the diversity of
the sources of law, as the country had inherited two | egal systens, the

Engl i sh-1 anguage one (common | aw) and the French-1anguage one (Roman | aw).
Partial nodifications had been nmade, but they were not always easy to consult.
Secondly, due to the country's econonic and financial difficulties, the

mat eri al and human resources budgets for justice were very |imted.

71. Wth regard to the problem of corruption, although it was difficult to
get a grip on, it was possible to discern cases of corruption by studying the
decisions of justice. As to access to justice, Cameroon had nmintained a
traditional court in civil affairs, which was very easily accessible. The

def endant could present, in his own | anguage, an oral request which could be
translated if necessary into one of the two official |anguages of the country.
There was al so a nodern court, which was readily accessible, but which had to
be addressed by witten request and therefore required the invol vement of

| awyers. Contrary to what happened in many European countries, the

Caner ooni an defendant did not need | egal counsel on civil matters, except in
cases of appeal to the Suprene Court, as the debate was then on | aw and not on
the facts. The | aw gave needy persons access to legal aid as |ong as they had
certified that they did not pay taxes. For crimnal cases, a |lawer was
assigned by the court.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1201
page 13

72. M . EBAN (Caneroon) said that there had i ndeed been clashes in the
Nor d- Quest province follow ng a boundary di spute between two villages, but
order had been restored. There were two types of communes in Cameroon, rura
conmunes and speci al system comunes. The former were headed by a mayor and
the latter by the President of the Minicipal Council, both elected by the
people, but the law called for the latter to be headed by a Government -

appoi nted representative.

73. In connection with the organization of elections, the main problem had
been voter registration, an operation conducted by the electoral roll review
commttee. That joint commttee, which included representatives of the

adm ni stration, of each political party participating in the elections, and of
the communes, registered citizens who nmet the voter eligibility requirenents,
but not militants of a given political party. The difficulties with

regi stration were explained by the fact that, in sonme regions, the people were
waiting to hear the date of the elections before they registered, but that,
prior to the Novenber 1997 vote on a new act which nmade voter registration
possi bl e year-round, registration was possible only between 1 January and

30 April. It was that registration problem w despread in Caneroon, which was
behind the authorities' decision to postpone the legislative elections
slightly.

74. M. EKOUMOUJ (Caneroon) said that, contrary to M. de Gouttes' assertion,
the Bantus were not a mnority. Regarding the Rwandan refugees, Cameroon had
not extradited Rmandans, as Rwanda had the death penalty. However, Rwandans
had been turned over to the International Tribunal for Rwanda. Rwandans
suspect ed of genocide were incarcerated in the Yaoundé central prison. O her
Rwandan refugees were fully assimlated into Caneroon, especially if they were
Bantus. As to the creation of a national independent conmm ssion, such a
nmeasure woul d be unconstitutional, as the Constitution called for the creation
of a constitutional council to rule on legislative and presidential elections.
Until such a court was established, it was the Suprene Court which perforned
that function. As to the question of national observers, the Governnent, with
the support of the Canadi an Government and several nenber States of the

Eur opean Union, was perfectly entitled to train election nonitors in
preparation for the el ections.

75. The CHAI RMAN t hanked the del egation warmy for its presence and
contribution to the debate and hoped the debate would be hel pful in preparing
t he next report.

76. The del egati on of Caneroon w t hdrew.

The neeting rose at 1.05 p. m




